
Licensing Act 2003 Committee
Date: Wednesday, 17 October 2018
Time: 6.00 p.m.

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer: Anne Beauchamp
Tel: 0151 691 8608
e-mail: annebeauchamp@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Committee are asked to declare any disclosable 
pecuniary and non pecuniary interests, in connection with any 
application on the agenda and state the nature of the interest. 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 
and the special meeting held on 12 June 2018.

3. MINUTES OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE (Pages 
5 - 20)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the Licensing Act 2003 
Sub-Committees held on 20 July, 17 July, 23 August and 6 September 
2018.

4. DRAFT STATEMENT OF POLICY UNDER THE GAMBLING ACT 
2005 (Pages 21 - 72)

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING ACT 2003 COMMITTEE
Thursday, 24 May 2018

Present: Councillor P Stuart (Chair)

Councillors RL Abbey
AER Jones
C Spriggs
M Sullivan
J Walsh
I Williams

A Hodson
P Hayes
L Rowlands
A Sykes
D Mitchell

Apologies Councillors T Norbury
G Davies

C Meaden

1 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Committee were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and non 
pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and state the 
nature of the interest.

No such declarations were made.

2 MINUTES 

Resolved – That the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 18 October 
2017 be approved.

3 APPOINTMENT OF LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE 

The Committee was requested to appoint the Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee 
with the term of membership to be continued until amended or otherwise changed by 
this Committee and until such time as a new Licensing Sub-Committee is appointed.

The Chair explained that each Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee is to be comprised 
of three Members drawn from the pool of fifteen Committee Members with the Chair 
being appointed on the day of each meeting.

Resolved –

(1) That each Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee meeting be comprised of 
three members to be drawn from the following pool of fifteen Committee 
Members:
Councillors Paul Stuart, Tony Norbury, Ron Abbey, George Davies, Adrian 
Jones, Chris Meaden, Christine Spriggs, Mike Sullivan, Joe Walsh, Irene 
Williams, Andrew Hodson, Paul Hayes, Les Rowlands, Adam Sykes and Dave 
Mitchell.

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



(2) That the term of membership be continued until amended or otherwise 
changed by this Committee and until such time as a new Licensing Sub-
Committee is appointed.

(3) That the Chairs of the Sub-Committees be appointed on the day of each 
meeting.

Page 2



LICENSING ACT 2003 COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 12 June 2018

Present: Councillor P Stuart (Chair)

Councillors AER Jones
C Meaden
C Spriggs
M Sullivan
J Walsh

I Williams
P Hayes
L Rowlands
D Mitchell

Apologies: Councillors T Norbury
RL Abbey
G Davies

A Hodson
A Sykes

4 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Committee were asked to declare any disclosable and non pecuniary 
interests in connection with any application on the agenda and state the nature of the 
interest.

No such declarations were made.

5 DRAFT STATEMENT OF POLICY UNDER THE GAMBLING ACT 2005 

The Assistant Chief Executive sought Members’ approval of the Draft Statement of 
Policy under The Gambling Act 2005 in order that it may be circulated for 
consultation.

Members were advised that the Council has been the Licensing Authority responsible 
for granting premises licence in Wirral in respect of betting premises, bingo premises, 
family entertainment centres, adult gaming centres and casino premises since 1 
September 2007.  Also, the Council has responsibility for Gaming Machine Permits, 
Temporary Use and Occasional Use Notices and the registration of Small Society 
Lotteries.

The Licensing Manager reported that The Gambling Act 2005 required the Council to 
prepare and publish a statement of policy that the Authority would apply when 
considering applications under the Act and that it was a requirement that this Policy 
document be reviewed every three years.  The revised draft Statement of Policy was 
considered by Members in order that it may be circulated for a three month 
consultation period.  This consultation period would commence on 13 June and end 
on 14 September 2018.

Resolved – That the Draft Statement of Policy be approved as a document to 
be consulted upon and that feedback from the consultation be reported back to 
the next meeting of this Committee so that a final draft statement may be 
considered by Council for approval as the Statement of Policy to be applied 
under The Gambling Act 2005.

Public Document Pack

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 20 June 2018

Present:
Councillors RL Abbey

AER Jones
C Meaden

4 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

Resolved – That Councillor R Abbey be appointed Chair for this meeting.

5 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Sub-Committee were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
and non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest.

No such declarations were made.

6 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
LICENSING ACT 2003 - WIRRAL LIBERAL CLUB, 29 SHREWSBURY ROAD, 
OXTON 

The Assistant Chief Executive reported upon an application that had been received 
from Georgina Martin for a Premises Licence in respect of Wirral Liberal Club, 29 
Shrewsbury Road, Oxton, under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003. 

The current hours together with the hours requested were outlined within the report 
and the Secretary of the Club had advised that should the application be granted, the 
Club Premises Certificate would be surrendered.

The applicant submitted an operating schedule setting out how the business would 
be conducted/ managed in accordance with the four licensing objectives. A copy of 
the full application was available. Following discussions with Merseyside Police, the 
applicant had agreed to include a number of conditions on the Premises Licence 
together with the proposals that had been set out in the operating schedule should 
the application be granted.

Three representations had been received from local residents.  The representations 
related to anti-social behaviour caused by customers of the premises whilst 
intoxicated.  The representations also related to noise nuisance at a late hour from 
entertainment.  Copies of the representations were available.

Mr Tomlinson, a trustee of Wirral Liberal Club, attended on behalf of the applicant.

A local resident who had made representations was also in attendance.

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



The Licensing Manager confirmed that all documentation had been sent and 
received and that Mr Tomlinson had been given authorisation from the applicant to 
represent her.

The Licensing Manager reported that notification had been received from one of the 
local residents advising that they were unable to attend, also a letter had been 
received from another local resident who requested that the meeting be adjourned as 
she was unable to attend, however, should the meeting proceed, that her 
representation be given full consideration.

Members considered the request for the adjournment and determined that the matter 
proceed.

The local resident in attendance submitted photographic evidence in support of his 
representation which was distributed to all parties further to the agreement of Mr 
Tomlinson.

The Licensing Manager outlined the report.

Mr Tomlinson addressed the Committee and advised Members that the application 
had been made in order to extend the scope of the Club to allow more members of 
the public into the premises without them having to become members.  He informed 
Members that the premises would rarely open for all the hours that had been applied 
for and that the Club often closes at 10.00 pm.  He advised that the later hours 
applied for would be to accommodate election days, parties and events.  He 
recognised the importance of being a good neighbour and having good dialogue with 
local residents and was aware of the concerns that had been raised.  He stated that 
music would never be played in the outside area of the premises and that alcohol 
would be sold at standard prices.  He advised that the exterior of the grounds were 
undergoing improvement and other improvements to the building were planned.

Mr Tomlinson responded to questions from Members of the Sub Committee, the local 
resident and Miss V Silvester, Legal Advisor to the Sub Committee. 

The local resident addressed the Sub Committee in objection to the application.  He 
informed Members that the premises had been relatively quiet during the last few 
months and although there had been an incident in May 2018 this had been an 
unusual occurrence.  He advised that the fact the premises had been less busy and 
this was welcomed by local residents.  He advised that the biggest concern was the 
noise emanating from beer garden of the premises and also raised concerns in 
respect of the minimal parking which resulted in cars parking up Arnside Road.  He 
submitted photographs of the premises further to the agreement of Mr Tomlinson and 
raised further concerns in respect of the change it would bring to the premises in 
respect of numbers of customers and clientele should the application be granted.

The local resident responded to questions from Members of the Sub-Committee and 
Miss V Silvester, Legal Advisor to the Sub Committee. 

In determining the application the Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee had regard to 
the Licensing Objectives, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the 
Statutory Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

Page 6



Members gave careful consideration to the submissions made by the applicant and 
the representations in writing and orally at the hearing.  

Members had regard to the fact that the operation of the premises would not 
fundamentally change and that the application was to allow flexibility in operating the 
premises to allow members of the public to use the premises.  Members noted that it 
was intended that if the customer base did increase, it was the intention to retain the 
same customer profile.  In determining the application, Members took into 
consideration the fact that the applicant had made it clear that there would be no 
music played in the outside area of the premises.

Members also had regard to the representations made by local residents and noted 
the particular concern regarding the close proximity of the beer garden to residents’ 
properties.   

Resolved –

(1) That in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, the 
public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
application. 

(2) That the application for a Premises Licence in respect of Wirral Liberal 
Club, 29 Shrewsbury Road, Oxton, be granted with the following hours:

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Sunday to Thursday 12:00 to 23:30
Friday and Saturday 12:00 to 00:00

Hours Open to the Public

Sunday to Thursday 12:00 to 00:00
Friday and Saturday 12:00 to 00:30

Live Music

Monday to Thursday  21:00 to 23:30
Friday and Saturday 21:00 to 00:00
Sunday 16:00 to 20:00

Non-Standard Timings

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Christmas Eve until 01:00
New Years, Eve until 01:30

Live Music

Christmas Eve until 01:00
New Years, Eve until 01:00

Page 7



Hours Open to the Public

Christmas Eve until 01:00
New Years, Eve until 02:00

(3) That in addition to the appropriate conditions proposed in the operating 
schedule and those proposed by Merseyside Police, the following 
conditions be placed on the Premises Licence:

 The Premises Licence Holder or representative must conduct regular 
assessments of noise coming from the premises. The assessments 
must be conducted throughout the evening. Steps must be taken to 
reduce the level of noise where it is likely to cause a disturbance to 
local residents. A written record must be made of those 
assessments in a log book kept for that purpose and shall include 
the time and date of the checks, the person making them and the 
results, including any remedial action taken. This must be made 
available to an Authorised Officer on request. 

 All external doors and windows must be kept closed from 22.00, 
except in the event of an emergency or to permit access to or egress 
from the premises. 

 The beer garden must be closed and cleared by 22:00.

Page 8



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 17 July 2018

Present: Councillors A Hodson
AER Jones

D Mitchell

7 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

Resolved – That Councillor A Hodson be appointed Chair for this meeting. 

8 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Sub-Committee were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
and non pecuniary interests in connection with the application on the agenda and to 
state the nature of the interest.

No such declarations were made.

9 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
LICENSING ACT 2003 - ROCKVILLA HOTEL, 329 OLD CHESTER ROAD, ROCK 
FERRY 

The Assistant Chief Executive reported upon an application that had been received 
from Michael Yates for a premises licence in respect of the Rockvilla Hotel, 329 Old 
Chester Road, Rock Ferry, under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003. 

Members were advised that the premises previously had a Premises Licence which 
was surrendered by the Premises Licence Holder, Enterprise Inns Plc, on 17 
February 2016 and that the premises was not currently operating . The hours 
permitted by the previous licence were set out within the report. 

The applicant submitted an operating schedule setting out how the business would 
be conducted/ managed in accordance with the four licensing objectives. A copy of 
the full application was available. 

Following discussions with Merseyside Police, the applicant had agreed to amend 
the original proposed sale by retail of alcohol hours and removed the request for non 
standard timings for Christmas Eve, Boxing Day and Bank Holiday weekends. The 
Applicant also agreed to include a number of conditions to be placed on the 
Premises Licence if the application were to be granted.

In respect of the application, three representations had been received from local 
residents and were in relation to a history of anti social behaviour caused from 
customers of the premises. Copies of the representations were available. 

No local residents were in attendance at the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

Page 9



The Licensing Manager confirmed that all documentation had been sent and 
received and that Members now had access to an arial photograph of the premises. 
Mr Yates presented a further letter in response to residents objections. 

The Licensing Manager then outlined the report. 

Mr Yates addressed the Committee and advised Members of his plans to operate the 
premises as a Hotel. He further advised that he would not allow any sportswear after 
7pm and that drinking would not be permitted outside of the premises and agreed for 
Officers to amend the plan of the premises to relate only to the fabric of the building 
and not to include the area immediately outside the premises. .He explained to 
Members how there would not be any music outside and would ensure that taxis will 
use call back facility within the premises. 

Mr Yates responded to questions from Members of the Sub Committee and Mr A 
Bayatti, Legal Advisor to the Sub Committee. 

In determining the application, the Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee had regard to 
the Licensing Objectives, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the 
Statutory Guidance issues under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

Members gave careful consideration to the submissions made by the Applicant and 
the representations made in writing from three local residents. who had concerns 
regarding the proximity of the premises to their properties and the noise and 
disturbance they experienced when the premises operated under a previous owner. 
In considering these representations Members did have regard to the proximity of the 
premises to local residents but could not hold the applicant responsible for 
disturbance caused when the premises was operated by a different owner. 

In determining the application, Members had regard to the experience of the 
Applicant and the measures that were proposed to ensure that the premises 
operated in such a way so as not to cause disturbance to local residents or 
individuals staying at the hotel. Members also took into consideration the fact that the 
applicant had agreed to the conditions proposed by Merseyside Police prior to the 
Hearing and that there were no representations from any of the other Responsible 
Authorities. Members also noted that the applicant was content for the plan of the 
premises to relate only to the fabric of the building and not to include the area 
immediately outside the premises.

Resolved –

(1) That in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 
2003, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the application.

(2) That the application for a Premises Licence in respect of Rockvilla 
Hotel, 329 Old Chester Road, Rock Ferry, be granted with the 
following hours:

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Page 10



Sunday to Thursday 11:00 to 23:00
Friday and Saturday 11:00 to 00:30

Hours Open to the Public

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 to 00:30
Friday and Saturday 10:00 to 01:30

Non –standard timings

New Years Eve
Supply of alcohol until 03:00
Hours open to the public until 04:00

(3) That in addition to the appropriate conditions proposed in the 
operating schedule and those proposed by Merseyside Police, the 
following conditions be placed on the Premises Licence:

 No drinks may be consumed in the areas outside the fabric of the 
building beyond 7.00pm.

 There must be notices in the outside areas to advise customers 
that they must not consume drinks in those areas beyond 7.00pm.

 Notices must be displayed in the premises advising customers to 
use a call back facility when booking taxis.

 The Licence holder or his representative must conduct regular 
assessments of the noise coming from the premises and must 
take steps to reduce the level of noise where it is likely to cause a 
disturbance to local residents.  A written record must be made of 
those assessments in a log book kept for that purpose and must 
include, the time and date of the checks, the person making them 
and the results including any remedial action.  This book must be 
made available for inspection by an Authorised Officer upon 
request.

 Bottles or broken glasses must not be disposed of from the 
premises between the hours of 9.00pm and 11.00am so as not to 
cause a disturbance to residents in the vicinity of the premises.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE
Thursday, 23 August 2018

Present: Councillors RL Abbey
C Meaden

P Stuart

10 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

Resolved – That Councillor P Stuart be appointed as Chair for this meeting.

11 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Sub- Committee were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or 
non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and to state 
the nature of the interest. 

No such declarations were made. 

12 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
LICENSING ACT 2003 - WIRRAL DISTILLERY, UNIT 3, CLAREMONT FARM 
BUILDINGS, OLD CLATTERBRIDGE ROAD, CLATTERBRIDGE 

The Managing Director for Delivery reported upon an application that had been 
received from Epic Spirits Limited for a Premises Licence in respect of Wirral 
Distillery, Unit 3, Claremont Farm Buildings, Old Clatterbridge Road, Clatterbridge.

It was reported that the premises does not currently hold a Premises Licence and 
proposed hours of operation were outlined within the report. 

The Applicant had submitted an operating schedule setting out how the business 
would be conducted/managed in accordance with the four licensing objectives. A 
copy of the full application was available. Members were advised that the proposals 
set out in the operating schedule may become conditions of the licence should the 
application be granted.

In respect of the application, 18 representations had been received from local 
residents. The representations related to concerns of potential anti-social behaviour 
caused by customers congregating within the vicinity of the premises after 
purchasing alcohol. The representations also related to concerns that nuisance could 
be caused by customers leaving the premises at a late hour. Copies of the 
representations were available. 

The applicants Mr P Golightly, as well as and Mr E Healing from Epic Spirits Limited 
were in attendance together with local residents, Mr Wright, Mr Baker and Mrs 
Brassey. 

The Licensing Manager confirmed that all documentation had been sent and 
received and that an additional email from Mr Golightly had been circulated. The 
Licensing Manager informed the Committee that she would read out a statement 

Public Document Pack

Page 13



from a local resident who had made a written representation who was unable to 
attend the hearing. Members were informed that following a meeting held on 16 
August 2018 between the Applicant and local residents objecting to the application, a 
proposal to amend the closing hours from 11pm to 7pm had been suggested.

Mr Golightly and Mr Healing addressed Members and outlined how the premises 
would operate should a Premises Licence be granted. Members heard how it was not 
the Applicant’s intention to operate as a bar or a pub. He explained how the premises 
would be a ‘show case’ premises, mostly focused on research and development. He 
informed that tours would operate at the premises with the opportunity for attendees 
to sample small amounts of gin and to purchase any bottles at the end of the tour.

The Applicant reported upon the meeting held with objectors on 16 August whereby 
he expressed his willingness to amend the closing hours and the sale of alcohol from 
11pm to 7pm. He further explained that proposed events could not go ahead under 
this amended licence, however, it was explained that Temporary Event Notices could 
be sought. 

Mr Golightly and Mr Healing responded to questions from Members of the Sub 
Committee, local residents Mr Wight, Mr Baker & Mrs Brassey and Mr A Bayatti, 
Legal Advisor to the Sub Committee.

In response to questions raised, Members heard clarification from the Applicant 
regarding the numbers of people who would attend tours and events. They heard 
how a maximum of 10/15 people would be present at tours and that they were 
organised infrequently within day time hours. They further explained that events can 
accommodate up to 100 guests, however, there are no current plans to host events. 
In response to a further question, Members were informed that gin would be distilled 
on the premises for demonstrational and developmental purposes and that only a 
small amount would be produced. 

Mr D Baker then addressed the Committee in objection to the application. Members 
heard how residents were concerned about the possibility of disruption associated 
with a premises producing and providing alcohol. He explained how residents had 
been disrupted by neighbouring licensed premises and his concerns that this would 
be exacerbated with the granting of a further alcohol licence within the immediate 
vicinity. He then explained further concerns over increase in traffic and potential for 
noise disturbance should events occur. 

The Licensing Manager read out the statement from the local resident who could not 
attend in relation to noise nuisance and associated traffic problems. 

In response to concerns raised Mr Golightly further advised his intentions to create a 
‘show case’ premises in order to develop and establish his business and not to 
operate the premises as a pub or bar. 

In determining the application members took into account section 11 of the guidance 
in respect of the review mechanism provided by the Licensing Act 2003. 

Resolved –

Page 14



(1) That in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, the 
public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
application. 

(2) That the application for a premises Licence in respect of Wirral 
Distillery, Unit 3, Claremont Farm Buildings, Old Clatterbridge Road, 
Clatterbridge be granted with the following hours:

Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Monday to Saturday 09:00 to 19:00
Sunday 10:00 to 18:00

Hours Open to the Public

Monday to Saturday 09:00 to 19:00
Sunday 10:00 to 18:00

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE
Thursday, 6 September 2018

Present:
Councillors L Rowlands

P Stuart
I Williams

13 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

Resolved – That Councillor P Stuart be appointed Chair for this meeting.

14 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Sub-Committee were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
and non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest.

No such declarations were made.

15 APPLICATION TO VARY A CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 - WALLASEY CRICKET CLUB, 
ROSCLARE DRIVE LISCARD. 

The Corporate Director for Business Management reported upon an application that 
had been received from Colin Rivett to vary a Club Premises Certificate in respect of 
Wallasey Cricket Club, Rosclare Drive, Liscard, under the provisions of the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

The premises currently have a Club Premises Certificate with the hours outlined 
within the report.

The applicant submitted an operating schedule setting out how the business would 
be conducted/ managed in accordance with the four licensing objectives. Members 
were advised that the proposals set out in the operating schedule may become 
conditions of the certificate should the application be granted.  A copy of the full 
application was available. 

Six representations had been received from local residents.  A petition had also been 
received signed by 24 local residents who were against the application.  The 
representations and petition related to concerns regarding the close proximity of the 
outside area to residential properties and that nuisance would be caused by 
members and guests using the outside area which was currently a problem to local 
residents.  Copies of the representations were available.

Mr Elliott, General Manager and Mr Dobby, Club Member, attended on behalf of the 
applicant.

Public Document Pack

Page 17



A local resident was in attendance to make representations on behalf of herself and 
also on behalf of other local residents.

The Licensing Manager confirmed that all documentation had been sent and 
received and that the Club Secretary had given notice for Mr Elliott and Mr Dobby to 
represent the Club at the hearing.

Mr Elliott advised that he wished to provide a petition in support of the application 
and a letter that had been circulated to local residents.  The local resident had no 
objections to these documents being considered and they were therefore distributed 
to all parties.

The Licensing Manager outlined the report.

Mr Elliott reported that the application had been made subsequent to the Club having 
advertised an event and having been advised that this was not permitted under the 
current Club Premises Certificate.  Mr Elliott advised that he believed the intention 
was to include the whole area when the original application had been made in 2005 
and not just the building and car park.  He informed Members that the Club had 
operated since 1935 and that it was normal practice for spectators to consume 
alcohol in the perimeter of the grounds and that the purpose of the application was to 
allow people to be able to do this which would enable spectators to sit around the 
ground and watch the cricket whilst enjoying a drink.  

Mr Elliott also advised that the application was not to vary the hours at the premises, 
but to include the grounds of the premises to enable the cricket club to sell alcohol 
from a marquee/tent on occasions in the outside area of the cricket ground.  He 
explained that the Club was seeking to hold social events in the outside area for a 
few occasions during the year and not on a regular basis nor were they attempting to 
change the current practices of the Club.  Members were advised that the Club holds 
an annual festival during August as well as an annual firework event and that in 
addition to these events there would be a limited number of other events.

Members heard that should the application be granted the Club would be content for 
a condition to be placed on the Club Premises Certificate to restrict the consumption 
of alcohol in the outside area of the premises to 10.30 pm and that any sale of 
alcohol that would take place within a marquee/tent would cease at 10.00 pm and 
that this would be monitored and enforced by staff and Members of the Committee.

Mr Elliott responded to questions from Members of the Sub Committee, the local 
resident and Miss V Silvester, Legal Advisor to the Sub Committee. 

In response to questions, Mr Elliott acknowledged that the Club had caused public 
nuisance to local residents when they hosted a 50th birthday party on 20 July this 
year, however, he advised that the Club would not intend to cause such a nuisance 
and would not allow this to occur again.

The local resident informed Members that she had lived in the area for 17 years and 
was in attendance to make representations for herself and also on behalf of local 
residents.  She advised Members that the building was small with an upstairs bar 
area and that outside drinking during cricket matches had taken place which had not 
raised any complaints.  Members were advised that the surrounding houses were in 

Page 18



close proximity to the premises and that some local residents were Members of the 
Club.  Members heard that since the increase in activity at the Club residents had 
become less tolerant of noise emanating from the premises due to doors and 
windows being left open.  Particular concern was raised relating to an event held on 
20 July when the noise from a live band playing outdoors had resulted in the 
community Police being called out and ward Councillors being advised further to 
residents being met with hostility after having complained to the Club.  Members 
were advised that residents’ complaints were normally resolved, however, there was 
a fear that should the application be granted local residents would experience an 
increase in disturbance from events being held outside.  

The local resident also referred to the event held during the August Bank Holiday 
which had resulted in numerous complaints in respect of noise nuisance over the last 
few years.  She believed the Club had been acting in an unprofessional manner and 
requested that Members consider in particular the close proximity of residential 
properties and have regard to their Policy and Statutory Guidance when determining 
the application.

The local resident responded to questions from Members of the Sub-Committee and 
Miss V Silvester, Legal Advisor to the Sub Committee. 

In response to concerns regarding children being on the premises late at night which 
it was said not only caused disturbance to local residents but gave concern in respect 
of the welfare of the children themselves, the applicant disputed that children 
remained on the premises late at night and stated they were actively encouraged 
from remaining on the premises beyond practice sessions.

In determining the application the Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee had regard to 
the Licensing Objectives, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the 
Statutory Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

Members took into account the fact that the main purpose of the Club was to function 
as a cricket club with a limited number of events taking place to sustain the viability of 
the Club.  Members also took into consideration that the purpose of the application 
was not to change the way in which the Club operated but to allow spectators to 
consume alcohol while watching cricket.  It had been noted that the residents did not 
object to this activity.  Consideration was also given to the applicant’s willingness to 
have a condition placed on the Club Premises Certificate that restricts the use of the 
outside area of the premises as well as the fact that the number of events taking 
place in the outside area would be limited.

Members also took into consideration the fact that there were no representations 
from any of the Responsible Authorities in respect of the application, in particular 
from Environmental Health or the Licensing Authority.

Members had particular regard to the provision within the Licensing Act 2003 for the 
Club Premises Certificate to be reviewed where problems associated with the 
Licensing Objectives occur after the grant or variation of a Club Premises Certificate. 

Page 19



Resolved –

(1) That in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, the 
public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
application. 

(2) That the application to vary the Club Premises Certificate in respect of 
Wallasey Cricket Club, Rosclare Drive, Liscard, be granted with the 
following conditions:

 The sale of alcohol outside the fabric of the building must not take place 
beyond 10.00 pm.

 The consumption of alcohol outside the fabric of the building must not 
take place beyond 10.30 pm.

Page 20



1

LICENSING ACT 2003 COMMITTEE
17 OCTOBER 2018

REPORT TITLE DRAFT STATEMENT OF POLICY UNDER THE GAMBLING 
ACT 2005

REPORT OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR BUSINESS MANAGEMENT 

REPORT SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to seek Members approval of the draft Statement of Policy under The 
Gambling Act 2005 in order that it may be presented to Council for approval on 10 December 
2018.

RECOMMENDATION/S

That the Draft Statement of Policy be recommended for approval by Council on 10 December 
2018.

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 It is a statutory requirement for the Council to review and consult upon a revised Statement 
of Policy every three years.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 There is no provision for other options to be considered.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Gambling Act 2005 requires the Council to prepare and publish a statement of the 
principles to be applied when exercising its functions under this Act. The Statement of 
Principles is referred to in this report as the Council’s Statement of Policy. It is a 
requirement that this policy document be reviewed every three years  

3.2 The Council’s Statement of Policy was first published in December 2006 and has been 
reviewed in accordance with the requirements every three years.

3.3 On 12 June 2018, Members of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee approved a draft 
Statement of Policy so that it may be circulated for consultation.   

3.4 The consultation period began on 13 June 2018 and closed on 14 September 2018.  

3.5 The draft Statement of Policy has been circulated to a number of consultees and has been 
publicised on the Council’s website. A list of consultees is attached in Appendix 1.

3.6 During the consultation period, feedback has been provided by one consultee, namely, 
Talarius Limited who operate an Adult Gaming Centre in Wirral.  The feedback provided 
has been incorporated into the revised draft which is presented with this draft for approval.

3.7 The draft Statement of Policy is attached as Appendix 2.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The costs incurred in undertaking this consultation will be recovered from Licence fees.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 A decision of this Committee can be subject to Appeal.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1 The costs incurred in undertaking this consultation will be recovered from Licence fees.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 There are none arising directly from this report.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The draft policy has been subject to consultation for a period of three months.

Page 22



3

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?

No because there is no relevance to equality.

REPORT AUTHOR: Margaret O’Donnell
Licensing Manager
telephone:  (0151) 691 8606
email:   margaretodonnell@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
None

REFERENCE MATERIAL

Appendix 1 – List of Consultees
Appendix 2 – Draft Statement of Policy

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Licensing Act 2003 Committee 12 June 2018

Page 23

mailto:margaretodonnell@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



List of Consultees

This draft document is being been circulated to a number of consultees including 
those listed below.  

 Elected Councillors, Wirral Council

 Environmental Health and Trading Standards Manager, Wirral Council

 Planning Authority, Wirral Council

 Local Safe Guarding Children Board, Wirral Council

 Wirral Federation of Tenants and Residents Association

 The Gambling Commission 

 Merseyside Police

 Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service

 H. M. Revenue & Customs

 Public Health

 Citizen’s Advice Bureau

 The Bingo Association

 Association of British Bookmakers

 British Casino Association

 Casino Operators Association of the UK

 British Holiday & Home Parks Association

 British Beer & Pub Association

 Gaming Machine Suppliers

 All persons who hold a Betting Office Premises Licence

 All persons who hold a Bingo Premises Licence

 Amusement Arcades that hold Adult Gaming Centre and Family Entertainment 

Centre Premises Licences

 Representatives holders of various licences 

Appendix 1

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

     

Draft
Statement of Policy

Gambling Act 2005

October 2018

Wirral Licensing Authority
Town Hall
Brighton Street
Wallasey
CH44 8ED

0151 691 8043

Appendix 2

Page 27



iiPage 28



iii

Table of Contents
Item Page No.

The Licensing Objectives 1
Introduction 2-4
Declaration 4
Responsible Authorities 4-5
Interested Parties 5-6
Exchange of Information 6-7
Enforcement
Local Risk Assessment
Local Area Profile

7-9
9
9

Licensing Authority Functions 10
Allocation of Decision Making Responsibilities 10-11
Premises Licences 11-14
Location 14-15
Planning and Building Control 15
Duplication with other regulatory regimes 15
Licensing Objectives 15-17
Conditions 17-18
Door Supervisors 19
Adult Gaming Centres 19
Licensed Family Entertainment Centres 20
Casinos 20
Bingo Premises 21-22
Bingo in Clubs and Alcohol Licensed Premises 22
Betting Premises 22-24
Travelling Fairs 24
Provisional Statements 24-25
Reviews 25-27
Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming machine permits 29
Premises Licensed to Sell Alcohol 29-30
Prize Gaming Permits 30-31
Application for Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 31-35
Temporary Use Notices 36
Occasional Use Notices 36

APPENDICES:
Appendix A - Scheme of Delegation
Appendix B – Consultees
Appendix C – Responsible Authorities

Page 29



ivPage 30



1

The Licensing Objectives

In exercising most of their functions under the Gambling Act 2005, (The Act) Wirral 
Borough Council as the Licensing Authority must have regard to the following 
Licensing Objectives:

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being 
associated with crime and disorder or being used to support crime

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling

It should be noted that the Gambling Commission has stated: “The requirement in 
relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling”.

This Licensing Authority is aware that in accordance with Section 153 of the 
Gambling Act 2005, in making decisions about premises licences and temporary use 
notices it should aim to permit the use of premises so far as it thinks it is:

 In accordance with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission

 In accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission

 Reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives in accordance with the 
Licensing Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy.

Page 31



2

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Wirral Borough Council is situated in the County of Merseyside, which 
contains no district Councils, but 5 metropolitan councils: Knowsley, Liverpool, 
Sefton, St Helens and Wirral.  The Council area has a population of 319,800 
(ONS 2010 midyear population estimates) making it the second largest after 
Liverpool in the County in terms of population.  In terms of area it is the largest 
in Merseyside, covering 60.1 square miles.  The Borough is mainly urban in 
outlook, with 32.85 square miles (54.66% of the borough) covered in 
Residential, Industrial or Commercial buildings.

The key provided identifies the urban / rural areas as well as regeneration 
priority areas.

1.2 Licensing Authorities are required by the Gambling Act 2005 to publish a 
statement of the principles which they propose to apply when exercising their 

Page 32



3

functions.  This statement must be published at least every three years.  The 
statement must also be reviewed from “time to time” and any amended parts 
re-consulted upon.  The statement must then be re-published.

1.3 The Gambling Act 2005 requires that the following parties are consulted by 
Licensing Authorities:

 The Chief Officer of Police

 One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the 
interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the Authority’s 
area

 One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the 
interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the 
Authority’s functions under the Gambling Act 2005

1.4 A list of the persons that the Council sent this document to for consultation is 
illustrated at Appendix B.

1.5 The draft was also circulated to consultees and additional copies were 
available on our web site www.wirral.gov.uk as well as at the Town Hall, 
Brighton Street, Wallasey, Wirral, CH44 8ED.

1.6 Consultees were advised to send any comments to:

Wirral Licensing Authority
Town Hall
Brighton Street
Wallasey
Wirral
CH44 8ED

Email: licensing@wirral.gov.uk

The closing date for comments on the draft policy statement was 
14 September 2018.

1.7 It should be noted that this policy statement will not override the right of any 
person to make an application, make representations about an application, or 
apply for a review of a licence, as each will be considered on its own merits 
and according to the statutory requirements of the Gambling Act 2005.  

1.8 In determining this policy, the Licensing Authority has had regard to the 
‘Guidance issued to Licensing Authorities’ issued by the Gambling 
Commission.  In determining what weight to give to particular representations, 
the factors to be taken into account will include:

 who is making the representations (what is their interest or expertise)

Page 33

http://www.wirral.gov.uk/


4

 relevance of the factors to the Licensing Objectives

 how many other people have expressed the same or similar views

 how far the representations relate to matters that the Licensing 
Authority should be including in its policy statement.

2.0 Declaration

2.1 In producing the final statement, this Licensing Authority has had regard to the 
Licensing Objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the Guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission, the Licensing Conditions and Codes of Practice and 
any responses from those consulted on the statement.

3.0 Responsible Authorities

3.1 The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will 
apply in exercising its powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in 
writing, a body which is competent to advise the Authority about the protection 
of children from harm.  The principles are:

 the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of 
the Licensing Authority’s area

 the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, 
rather than any particular vested interest group

3.2 In accordance with the suggestion in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance 
for Local Authorities, this Authority designates the Wirral Safeguarding 
Children Board for this purpose as a Responsible Authority.

3.3 Safeguarding children is a key priority for Wirral Council, and the Licensing 
Authority expects all licensees to have strict control measures in place to 
mitigate any risks to underage gambling.  

3.4 The Responsible Authorities under the Gambling Act 2005 are:

 Licensing, Wirral Borough Council

 The Gambling Commission

 The Chief Constable, Merseyside Police

 Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority

 Planning, Wirral Borough Council 

 Environmental Health, Wirral Borough Council

 Wirral Safeguarding Children Board

Page 34



5

 H.M. Revenue & Customs (HMRC)

Subject to any other person being prescribed in Regulations by the Secretary
of State. The contact addresses for these Authorities are illustrated at
Appendix C. 

4.0 Interested Parties

4.1 Interested parties can make representations about licence applications, or 
apply for a review of an existing licence.  These parties are defined in the 
Gambling Act 2005 as follows:

 “For the purposes of this Part a person is an Interested Party in relation to an 
application for or in respect of a premises licence if, in the opinion of the 
Licensing Authority which issues the licence or to which the application is 
made, the person-

a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the
authorised activities

b) has business interests that might be affected by the authorised 
activities

c) represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b)

4.2 The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the principles we 
will apply in exercising our powers under the Gambling Act 2005 to determine 
whether a person is an Interested Party.  

4.3 When determining what ‘significantly close to the premises’ means the 
Licensing Authority will take into account:

  the size of the premises
  the nature of the premises
  the distance of the premises from the location of the person making the

 representation
 the potential impact of the premises such as the number of customers, 

routes likely to be taken by those visiting the establishment
 the circumstances of the person who lives close to the premises. This is 

not the personal characteristics of the complainant, but their interests 
which may be relevant to the distance from the premises

The Licensing Authority may determine that ‘sufficiently close to be likely to be 
affected’ could have a different meaning for (a) a private resident, (b) a 
residential school for children with truanting problems, and (c) a residential 
hostel for vulnerable adults.

4.4 In determining whether there is a business interest the Licensing Authority will 
take into consideration the size of the premises, the catchment area of the 

Page 35



6

premises and whether the person making the representation has a business 
interest in that catchment area that could be affected.  The nature and scope 
of business interest that could be affected will also be taken into consideration.

4.5 In considering whether there is a business interest the Licensing Authority will 
consider business interests in its widest possible interpretation, to include 
partnerships, charities, faith groups and medical practices.

4.6 Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected such as 
Councillors, M.P.’s etc. No specific evidence of being asked to represent an 
interested party will be required as long as the Councillor / M.P. etc. 
represents the Ward likely to be affected. Save for democratically elected 
persons, other representations may include bodies such as trade associations 
and trade unions, and residents’ and tenants’ associations.  A School Head or 
Governor might act in representing the interests of pupils or parents and a 
community group might represent vulnerable people living near to the 
premises.  This Authority will generally require written evidence that a 
person/body (e.g. an advocate / relative) ‘represents’ someone who either 
lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 
authorised activities and/or has business interests that might be affected by 
the authorised activities.  A letter from one of these persons, requesting the 
representation is sufficient.

4.7 If individuals wish to approach Councillors to ask them to represent their views 
then care should be taken that the Councillors are not part of the Licensing 
Committee dealing with the licence application.  If there are any doubts then 
please contact the Licensing Department at the Town Hall, Brighton Street, 
Wallasey, CH44 8ED or email licensing@wirral.gov.uk. 
 

5.0 Exchange of Information

5.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that shared regulation depends on 
effective partnership and collaborations. The exchange of information between 
the Commission and Licensing Authorities is an important aspect of that and 
to the benefit of both. Licensing Authorities play a particular role in sharing 
information about gambling activity at a local level, which is important for the 
Commission’s overarching view of gambling activity, not least because that 
enables the Commission to identify risks and feed information and intelligence 
back to licensing authorities. It also enables the Commission to fulfil its duty to 
advise the Secretary of State about the incidence of gambling and the manner 
in which it is conducted.  

Section 29 of The Gambling Act 2005 enables the Commission to require 
information from Licensing Authorities, including the manner in which the 
information is compiled, collated and the form in which it is provided, providing 
that it: 

 forms part of a register maintained under the Act 

Page 36



7

 is in the possession of the Licensing Authority in connection with a 
provision of the Act.

5.2 This Licensing Authority will act in accordance with the provisions of the 
Gambling Act 2005 in its exchange of information which includes compliance 
with the General Data Protection Regulations. We will also have regard to any 
Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission to Local Authorities on this 
matter, as well as any relevant regulations issued by the Secretary of State 
under the powers provided in the Gambling Act 2005.  

5.3 Section 350 of The Gambling Act 2005 allows Licensing Authorities to 
exchange information with other persons or bodies for use in the exercise of 
functions under the Act. Those persons or bodies are listed in Schedule 6(1) 
as: 

 a Constable or Police Force 
 an Enforcement Officer 
 a Licensing Authority 
 HMRC 
 the First Tier Tribunal 
 the Secretary of State 
 Scottish Ministers. 

5.4 As a Licensing Authority we will maintain data on Premises Licences. As part 
of the application process for a premises licence, applicants will forward notice 
of the application to the Commission, and we will subsequently notify the 
Commission of the outcome of each application, whether it is granted or 
refused. The Act also requires Licensing Authorities to notify the Commission 
of other matters such as when a licence has lapsed or been surrendered, and 
the cancellation of certain permits and registrations. Under s.29 of the Act, the 
Commission has identified further information requirements that it is necessary 
for Licensing Authorities to provide, which form part of the Licensing Authority 
Return in the Single Data List.

5.5 Should any protocols be established as regards information exchange with 
other bodies then they will be made available.

6.0 Enforcement 

6.1 Licensing Authorities are required by regulation under the Gambling Act 2005 
to state the principles to be applied by the Authority in exercising the functions 
under Part 15 of the Act with respect to the inspection of premises; and the 
powers under Section 346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in 
respect of the offences specified.

6.2 This Licensing Authority’s principles are that it will be guided by the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance for Local Authorities and will apply the principles of 
good regulation in accordance with the principles of better regulation and the 
Regulators’ Code.  In accordance with the Regulators Code, this Authority 
aims to support businesses and individuals to comply with the law and grow 

Page 37



8

within the Borough.  The Licensing Authority understands that regulatory 
activity can have cost implications on businesses.  We will undertake such 
activity to minimise the negative economic impact of this work were possible, 
choosing proportionate and effective approaches to regulation.  This means 
that inspections and enforcement activities will be undertaken in accordance 
with the following principles:

 Proportionate: We will only intervene when necessary:  remedies will be 
appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised

 Accountable:  We will justify our decisions and be subject to public scrutiny

 Consistent:  Rules and standards will be joined up and implemented fairly

 Transparent:  We will be open and transparent and keep regulations simple 
and user friendly

 Targeted:  Regulation will be focused on the problem, and minimise side 
effects 

6.3 In accordance with the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for Local Authorities 
this Licensing Authority will endeavour to avoid duplication with other 
regulatory regimes so far as possible.  

6.4 This Licensing will target high risk premises which require greater attention 
and will operate a lighter touch in respect of low risk premises.  The criteria the 
Licensing Authority will use to determine the level of risk will include;

 The Licensing Objectives
 Relevant Codes of Practice
 Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission, in particular at Part 36
 The principles set out in this statement of Licensing Policy

6.5 The main enforcement and compliance role for this Licensing Authority in 
terms of the Gambling Act 2005 will be to ensure compliance with the 
premises licences and other permissions which it authorises.  The Gambling 
Commission will be the Enforcement Body for operating and personal 
licences.  Concerns about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines 
will not be dealt with by the Licensing Authority but will be notified to the 
Gambling Commission.  

6.6 Bearing in mind the principle of transparency, this Licensing Authority’s 
enforcement/compliance protocols/written agreements will be available upon 
request at the Licensing Department, Town Hall, Brighton Street, Wallasey 
CH44 8ED and on the Council Website – www.wirral.gov.uk.

Page 38



9

6.7 In accordance with the Regulators Code this Licensing Authority has produced 
an Enforcement Policy which is available upon request at the Licensing 
Department, Town Hall, Brighton Street, Wallasey CH44 8ED and on the 
Council Website – www.wirral.gov.uk.

7.0 Local Risk Assessment

7.1 The social responsibility code requires licensees to assess the local risks to 
the licensing objectives posed by the provision of gambling facilities at each of 
their premises, and have policies, procedures and control measures to 
mitigate those risks. In undertaking their risk assessments, it is expected that 
premises located in Wirral will have regard to Local Insight Wirral which is an 
online tool providing detailed area profiles of Wirral.  It can be found online 
within this link https://wirral.communityinsight.org/. 

7.2 Applicants are required to undertake a local risk assessment when applying 
for a new premises licence. Risk assessment must also be updated:

 when applying for a variation of a premises licence

 to take account of significant changes in local circumstances, which 
may be highlighted in the Local Insight Wirral tool which is updated on a 
monthly basis

 when there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may 
affect their mitigation of local risks.

7.3 The social responsibility provision is supplemented by an ordinary code 
provision that requires Licence Holders to share their risk assessment with 
licensing authorities when applying for a premises licence or applying for a 
variation to existing licensed premises, or otherwise at the request of the 
licensing authority.

8.0 Local Area Profile

8.1 Wirral Council has developed its own assessment of the local environment 
and has mapped out the key characteristics of the local areas.  This 
assessment which applicants can use to have a better understanding of a 
particular area can be found online within this link: 
https://wirral.communityinsight.org/.

8.2 For example, an area might be identified as high risk on the basis that it is 
located within close proximity to a youth centre, rehabilitation centre, or 
school. In these circumstances, the licensing authority would expect licence 
holders to take appropriate steps to ensure that they have sufficient controls in 
place to mitigate associated risks in such areas and, if not, the licensing 
authority would consider other controls themselves.

8.3 The licensing authority will expect operators and new applicants to use the 
local area profiles to inform of specific risks that operators will need to address 

Page 39

http://www.wirral.gov.uk/
https://wirral.communityinsight.org/
https://wirral.communityinsight.org/


10

in the risk assessments which will form part of any new licence application, or 
an application to vary a licence.

9.0 Licensing Authority Functions

9.1 Licensing Authorities are required under the Act to:

 Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to 
take place by issuing Premises Licences

 
 Issue Provisional Statements

 Regulate Members’ Clubs and Miners’ Welfare Institutes who wish to 
undertake certain gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or 
Club Machine Permits

 Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs

 Grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at 
unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres

 Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing Act 
2003) for the use of two or fewer gaming machines

 Issue Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to 
sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises, under the 
Licensing Act 2003, where there are more than two machines

 Register Small Society Lotteries below prescribed thresholds

 Issue Prize Gaming Permits

 Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices 

 Receive Occasional Use Notices 

 Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of licences 
issued

 Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these 
functions

10.0 Allocation of Decision Making Responsibilities

10.1 The Licensing Authority is involved in a wide range of licensing 
decisions and functions which will be administered by the Licensing Act 
2003 Committee and Sub-Committees thereof.

10.2 Many of the decisions and functions will be purely administrative in nature and 
the grant of non-contentious applications, including for example, those 

Page 40



11

licences and permits where no representations have been made, is delegated 
to Council Officers.

10.3 The table shown at Appendix A sets out the agreed delegation of decisions 
and functions to the Licensing Act 2003 Committee, Sub-Committees and 
Officers.  This form of delegation is without prejudice to an Officer referring an 
application to a Sub-Committee, a full Committee, or to full Council, if 
considered appropriate in the circumstances of any particular case.

10.4 The Licensing Authority’s decision making process will be informed by the 
local area profile and will have particular regard to the proximity of gambling 
premises to schools, vulnerable adult centres, residential areas where there is 
a high concentration of families with children and areas of the Borough that 
are particularly attractive to children such as New Brighton.

10.5 Each application will be decided on it merits taking into consideration how the 
applicant can demonstrate that they can overcome concerns that the 
Licensing Objectives may not be met.

11.0 Premises Licences

General Principles

11.1 Premises Licences are subject to the requirements set-out in the Gambling Act 
2005 and regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default conditions 
which are detailed in Regulations issued by the Secretary of State.

11.2 The Licensing Authority are able to exclude default conditions and also attach 
other conditions, where we believe it to be appropriate.

11.3 This Licensing Authority is aware that in making decisions about premises 
licences we should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as 
we think it is:

 In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission

 In accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission

 Reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives 

 In accordance with this Statement of Licensing Policy

The Licensing Authority will not take into consideration whether there is 
demand for a particular gambling premises when making it’s decision.

11.4 It is appreciated that gambling can be an emotive subject but acknowledge 
that in accordance with Gambling Commission Guidance for Local Authorities, 

Page 41



12

“moral objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications for 
premises licences”. 

11.5 Representations made in respect of applications should be based on the 
Licensing Objectives as set out at Page 1 of this Policy.  It is important to note 
that the Licensing Objectives are different to those set out in The Licensing Act 
2003 and do not include the prevention of public nuisance or public safety.

11.6 Premises is defined in the Act as “any place”.  Different premises licences 
cannot apply in respect of a single premises at different times. It is however 
possible for a single building to be subject to more than one premises licence, 
providing that each licence is for a different part of the building and such 
different parts can be properly regarded as different premises.

11.7 The Licensing Authority will judge each case on its individual merits to decide 
as a matter of fact, whether different parts of a building can be properly 
regarded as being separate premises.

11.8 The Gambling Commission, in their guidance, do not consider that areas of a 
building that are artificially or temporarily separate for examples by ropes or 
movable partitions, can be properly regarded as different premises.  This 
Licensing Authority supports this view.

11.9 The location of the premises will clearly be an important consideration and a 
significant factor that the Licensing Authority will consider is whether the 
premises are genuinely separate premises that merit their own licence and are 
not artificially created part of what is readily identifiable as a single premises.   
The suitability of the division is likely to be a matter for discussion between the 
operator and the Licensing Officer.  As stated above areas of a building that 
are artificially or temporarily separated, for example by ropes or moveable 
partitions, will not properly be regarded as different premises.

11.10 The Licensing Authority make particular note of the Gambling Commission’s 
“Guidance to Licensing Authorities” which states that: Licensing Authorities 
should take particular care in considering applications for multiple licences for 
a building and those relating to a discrete part of a building used for other 
(non-gambling) purposes.  In particular they should be aware of the following:

 The third Licensing Objective seeks to protect children from being harmed 
by gambling.  In practice that means not only preventing them from taking 
part in gambling, but also preventing them from being in close proximity to 
gambling.  Therefore premises should be configured so that children are 
not invited to participate in, have accidental access to or closely observe 
gambling where they are prohibited from participating.

 Entrances to and exits from parts of a building covered by one or more 
premises licences should be separate and identifiable so that the 
separation of different premises is not compromised and people do not 
‘drift’ into a gambling area.  In this context it should normally be possible to 
access the premises without going through another licensed premises or 
premises without a permit.

Page 42



13

 Customers should be able to participate in the activity named on the 
premises licence.

11.11 In determining whether premises are truly separate the Licensing Authority will 
consider the following factors:

 Do the premises have a separate registration for business rates?
 Is the premises’ neighbouring premises owned by the same person or 

someone else?
 Can each of the premises be accessed from the street or a public 

passageway?
 Can the premises only be accessed from any other gambling premises?

11.12 An issue that may arise when division of a premises is being considered is the 
nature of the unlicensed area from which a customer may access a licensed 
gambling premises. The precise nature of this public area will depend on the 
location and nature of the premises. As a Licensing Authority we will need to 
consider whether the effect of any division is to create a machine shed-type 
environment with very large banks of machines, which is not the intention of 
the access conditions, or whether it creates a public environment with 
gambling facilities being made available. 

11.13 The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions) Regulations 9 
sets out the access provisions for each type of premises. The broad principle 
is that there can be no access from one licensed gambling premises to 
another, except between premises which allow access to those under the age 
of 18 years and with the further exception that licensed betting premises may 
be accessed from other licensed betting premises. Under-18s can go into 
Family Entertainment Centres (FEC), tracks, pubs and some bingo clubs, so 
access is allowed between these types of premises.

11.14 The relevant access provisions for each premises type is as follows:

Type of Premises Access Provisions
Casinos  the principal entrance to the premises must 

be from a ‘street’ 
 no entrance to a casino must be from 

premises that are used wholly or mainly by 
children and/or young persons 

 no customer must be able to enter a casino 
directly from any other premises which holds 
a gambling premises licence.

Adult Gaming 
Centres (AGC)

 no customer must be able to access the 
premises directly from any other licensed 
gambling premises

Betting Shops  access must be from a ‘street’ or from other 
premises with a betting premises licence 

 no direct access from a betting shop to 
another premises used for the retail sale of 

Page 43



14

merchandise or services. In effect there 
cannot be an entrance to a betting shop from 
a shop of any kind unless that shop is itself a 
licensed betting premises.

Tracks  no customer must be able to access the 
premises directly from a casino or AGC

Bingo Premises  no customer must be able to access the 
premises directly from a casino, an AGC or a 
betting premises, other than a track

Family Entertainment 
Centres

 no customer must be able to access the 
premises directly from a casino, an AGC or a 
betting premises, other than a track.

11.15 This Authority will consider the above requirement and other relevant 
factors in making its decision, depending on all the circumstances of the case.

12.0 Premises “ready for gambling”

12.1 The Guidance states that a Licence to use premises for gambling should only 
be issued in relation to premises that the Licensing Authority can be satisfied 
are going to be ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably near future, 
consistent with the scale of building or alterations required before the 
premises are brought into use. 

12.2 If the construction of a premises is not yet complete, or if they need alteration, 
or if the applicant does not yet have a right to occupy them, then an 
application for a provisional statement should be made.  It is recognised 
however, by this Authority that Operators can apply for a Premises Licence in 
respect of premises which have still to be constructed or altered.  

In these circumstances where there are outstanding construction or alteration 
works in respect of a premises, this Authority will determine applications on 
their merits, applying a two stage consideration process:-

 First, whether the premises ought to be permitted to be used for gambling 
 Second, whether appropriate conditions can be put in place to cater for the 

situation that the premises are not yet in the state in which they ought to 
be before gambling takes place

12.4 Applicants should note that this Authority is entitled to decide that it is 
appropriate to grant a licence subject to conditions, but it is not obliged to 
grant such a licence. 

13.0 Location

13.1 This Licensing Authority is aware that demand issues cannot be considered in 
relation to the location of premises but that considerations made in terms of 
the Licensing Objectives can be considered.

Page 44



15

13.2 The Licensing Authority, in accordance with the Gambling Commission’s 
“Guidance for Local Authorities”, will pay particular attention to the protection 
of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder.

13.3 This Authority has not adopted any specific policy in relation to areas where 
gambling premises should not be located. Should any such policy be decided 
upon regarding such areas where gambling premises should not be located, 
this policy statement will be updated.

13.4 It should be noted that any such future policy will not preclude any application 
being made and each application will be decided on its merits, with the onus 
upon the applicant showing how any potential concerns can be overcome.

14.0 Planning and Building Control

14.1 In determining applications the Licensing Authority will undertake its duty to 
take into consideration all relevant matters and not to take into consideration 
any irrelevant matters, in effect those not related to gambling and the 
Licensing Objectives. One example of an irrelevant matter would be the 
likelihood of the applicant obtaining planning permission or building 
regulations approval for their proposal. 

14.2 When dealing with a Premises Licence application for finished buildings, the 
Licensing Authority will not take into account whether those buildings have or 
comply with the necessary planning or building consents. Nor will fire or health 
and safety risks be taken into account.  Those matters should be dealt with 
under relevant Planning and Building Control and other regulations, and will 
not form part of the consideration for the Premises Licence.  Section 210 of 
the 2005 Act prevents Licensing Authorities taking into account the likelihood 
of the proposal by the applicant obtaining planning or building consent when 
considering a premises licence application.  Equally the grant of a gambling 
premises licence does not prejudice or prevent any action that may be 
appropriate under the law relating to Planning or Building Control.

15.0 Duplication with other Regulatory Regimes

15.1 This Licensing Authority will seek to avoid any duplication with other statutory / 
regulatory systems where possible, including planning.  This Authority will not 
consider whether a licence application is likely to be awarded planning 
permission or building regulations approval, in its consideration of it.  It will 
though, listen to, and consider carefully, any concerns about conditions which 
are not able to be met by licensees due to planning restrictions, should such a 
situation arise.

16.0 Licensing Objectives 

16.1 Premises Licences granted must be reasonably consistent with the Licensing 
Objectives.  With regard to these Objectives, this Licensing Authority has 

Page 45



16

considered the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Local Authorities and 
some comments are made below.

16.2 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime.
This Licensing Authority is aware that the Gambling Commission takes a 
leading role in preventing gambling from being a source of crime. The 
Gambling Commission’s Guidance does however envisage that the Licensing 
Authority should pay attention to the proposed location of gambling premises 
in terms of this Licensing Objective.  Therefore, where an area has known 
high levels of organised crime, we will consider carefully whether gambling 
premises are suitable to be located there and whether conditions may be 
suitable, such as, the provision of door supervisors.  Responsible Authorities 
would however have the right to make representation with regard to such 
premises.

16.3 The Licensing Authority is aware of the distinction between disorder and 
nuisance and will consider factors such as whether Police assistance was 
required and how threatening the behaviour was to those who could see it, so 
as to make that distinction. It should be noted that prevention of nuisance is 
not a Gambling Act Licensing Objective.

16.4 In considering licence applications, the Licensing Authority will particularly 
take into account the following:

 The design and layout of the premises

 The training given to staff in crime prevention measures appropriate to those 
premises

 Physical security features installed in the premises.  This may include matters 
such as the position of cash registers or the standard of CCTV that is installed

 Where premises are subject to age-restrictions, the procedures in place to 
conduct age verification checks

 The likelihood of any violence, public order or policing problem if the licence is 
granted

16.5 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way.
This Licensing Authority is aware that the Gambling Commission has stated 
that it would generally not expect Licensing Authorities to become concerned 
with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as this will be 
addressed by the operator and personal licensing system. 

16.6 Should this Licensing Authority suspect that gambling is not being conducted 
in a fair and open way this will be brought to the attention of the Gambling 
Commission.

16.7 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling.

Page 46



17

16.8 The Licensing Authority will have particular regard to whether staff are able to 
adequately supervise premises to prevent underage gambling.  

16.9 Appropriate measures may include supervision of access points, segregation 
of areas, CCTV, the use of floor walkers, the position of counters etc. 

If the operator fails to satisfy this Licensing Authority that the risks to 
underage gambling are sufficiently mitigated, it may be appropriate for us to 
conduct a review of the Premises Licence.

16.10 In reference to the term “vulnerable persons” we note that the Gambling 
Commission or statute law does not seek to offer a definition but the 
Commission states that “it will for regulatory purposes assume that this group 
includes:

 People who gamble more than they want to

 People who gamble beyond their means

 People who may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about 
gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs”.

16.11 This Licensing Authority will consider promotion of this Licensing Objective on 
a common sense, case by case basis. This Licensing Authority will interpret 
vulnerable persons in its widest possible concept and does not limit the 
definition to individuals who participate in gambling but recognises that it may 
include individuals who are affected by those who gamble, for example, 
children of adults who gamble beyond their means.  This will be reflected in 
the local area profile and will be balanced with the legal requirement to aim to 
permit the use of premises for gambling.  Whilst there is a presumption in 
favour of permitting the relevant premises to be used for gambling, this 
Licensing Authority may not do so unless satisfied that such use would be in 
accordance with the Guidance to Licensing Authorities, any relevant 
Commission Code of Practice, its own statement of Licensing Policy, and the 
Licensing Objectives.  Should a practical definition prove possible in future 
then this policy statement will be updated with it, by way of a revision.

17.0 Conditions

17.1 Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate and will be:

 Relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling 
facility

 Directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for

 Fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises

 Reasonable in all other respects 

Page 47



18

17.2 Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis, 
although there will be a number of measures this Licensing Authority will 
consider utilising, should there be a perceived need, such as the use of 
supervisors, appropriate signage for adult only areas etc.  There are specific 
comments made in this regard under some of the licence types below.  This 
Licensing Authority will also expect the Licence Applicant to offer his/her own 
suggestions as to ways in which the Licensing Objectives can be met 
effectively.

17.3 This Licensing Authority will also consider specific measures which may be 
required for buildings which are subject to multiple premises licences.  Such 
measures may include the supervision of entrances; segregation of gambling 
from non-gambling areas frequented by children; and the supervision of 
gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific premises in order to pursue 
the Licensing Objectives.  These matters are in accordance with the Gambling 
Commission's Guidance.

17.4 This Authority will also ensure that where category C or above machines are 
on offer in premises to which children are admitted:

 All such machines are located in an area of the premises which is separated 
from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to 
prevent access other than through a designated entrance

 Only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located

 Access to the area where the machines are located is supervised

 The area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be 
observed by the staff or the licence holder

 At the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently displayed 
notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18

17.5 These considerations will apply to premises including buildings where multiple 
premises licences are applicable.

17.6 It is noted that there are conditions which the Licensing Authority cannot 
attach to Premises Licences, they are

 Any condition on the Premises Licence which makes it impossible to comply 
with an Operating Licence condition

 
 Conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of 

operation

 Conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required. (The 
Gambling Act  2005 specifically removes the membership requirement for 
casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated)

Page 48



19

 Conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes

18.0 Door Supervisors

18.1 The Gambling Commission advises in its “Guidance to Licensing Authorities” 
that if a Licensing Authority is concerned that a premises may attract disorder 
or be subject to attempts at unauthorised access (for example by children and 
young persons) then it may require that the entrances to the premises are 
controlled by a door supervisor, and is entitled to impose a premises licence 
condition to this effect. 

18.2 Where it is decided that supervision of entrances/machines is appropriate for 
particular cases, a consideration of whether these need to be SIA licensed or 
not will be necessary.  It will not be automatically assumed that they need to 
be licensed, as the statutory requirements for different types of premises vary 
(as per the Guidance, Part 33).

19.0 Adult Gaming Centres

19.1 This Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect 
children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling 
and will expect an applicant to satisfy the Authority that there will be sufficient 
measures to ensure that persons under the age of 18 do not have access to 
the premises.  

19.2 This Licensing Authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to 
meet the Licensing Objectives, appropriate measures or licence conditions 
may cover issues such as:

 Proof of age schemes

 CCTV

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas

 Physical separation of areas

 Location of entry

 Notices/signage

 Specific opening hours

 Self-exclusion schemes

 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare

Page 49



20

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures.

20.0 Licensed Family Entertainment Centres

20.1 This Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect 
children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling 
and will expect the applicant to satisfy the Authority, for example, that there 
will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have 
access to the adult only gaming machine areas.  

20.2 This Licensing Authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to 
meet the Licensing Objectives, appropriate measures / licence conditions may 
cover issues such as:

 CCTV

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas

 Physical separation of areas

 Location of entry

 Notices / signage

 Specific opening hours

 Self-exclusion schemes

 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare.

 Measures / training for staff on how to deal with suspected truant school 
children on the premises

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures.

20.3 This Licensing Authority will, in accordance with the Gambling Commission’s 
guidance, refer to the Commission to see any conditions that apply to 
Operating Licences covering the way in which the area containing the 
category C machines should be delineated.  This Licensing Authority will also 
make itself aware of any mandatory or default conditions on these premises 
licences as well as the requirements under the Social Responsibility Code.

21.0 Casinos

21.1 No Casinos resolution - This Licensing Authority has not passed a ‘no 
casino’ resolution under Section 166 of the Gambling Act 2005, but is aware 

Page 50



21

that it has the power to do so.   Should this Licensing Authority decide in the 
future to pass such a resolution, it will update this policy statement with details 
of that resolution.  Any such decision will be made by the Full Council.  

22.0 Bingo Premises

22.1 This Licensing Authority notes that the Gambling Commission’s Guidance 
states:

18.5 Licensing Authorities will need to satisfy themselves that Bingo can be 
played in any bingo premises for which they issue a Premises Licence. This 
will be a relevant consideration where the operator of an existing bingo 
premises applies to vary their licence to exclude an area of the existing 
premises from its ambit and then applies for a new premises licence, or 
multiple licences, for that or those excluded areas. 

22.2 Children and young people are allowed into bingo premises; however they are 
not permitted to participate in the Bingo and if category B or C machines are 
made available for use these must be separated from areas where children 
and young people are allowed. 

22.3 This Licensing Authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to 
meet the Licensing Objectives, appropriate measures or licence conditions 
may cover issues such as:

 Proof of age schemes

 CCTV

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas

 Physical separation of areas

 Location of entry

 Notices/signage

 Specific opening hours

 Self-exclusion schemes

 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures.

22.4 If the Licensing Authority receives an application to vary a Premises Licence 
for bingo or betting in order to extend the opening hours, the Authority will 
need to satisfy itself that the reason for the application is in line with the 

Page 51



22

requirements on primary gambling activity (i.e. the need for operating licence 
holders to ensure that the gambling activity appropriate to the licence type 
(‘the primary activity’ or ‘the principal activity’) is actually offered at those 
premises and not replaced by the making available of gaming machines).  
Therefore, the applicant should be able to demonstrate that the extension of 
the opening hours is not designed solely to benefit from the machine 
entitlement and activity which is ancillary to the primary activity of the 
premises, namely betting or bingo.

23.0 Bingo in Clubs and Alcohol Licensed Premises

23.1 Bingo will be permitted on Alcohol Licensed Premises, and in Clubs and 
Miners’ Welfare Institutes, under the allowances for exempt gaming in Part 12 
of the Act.  Where the level of Bingo played in these premises, under the 
exempt gaming allowances, reaches a certain threshold, it will no longer be 
authorised by these allowances, and a Bingo Operating Licence will have to 
be obtained from the Commission for future Bingo games.  The aim of these 
provisions is to prevent Bingo becoming a predominant commercial activity on 
such non-gambling premises.

23.2 The threshold is that if the bingo played during any seven-day period exceeds 
£2,000 (either in money taken or prizes awarded) once a year, referred to as 
“high turnover Bingo”.  There is a legal duty on the licensee or club to inform 
the Commission if at any point its bingo in any seven-day period exceeds this 
threshold.  That allows the Commission to monitor the bingo activity on the 
premises, and discuss with the relevant licensee or club the point at which a 
Bingo Operating Licence may be needed.  A ‘high turnover period’ begins with 
the first day of the seven day period in which the threshold was exceeded and 
lasts for a year.  If a second period of high turnover Bingo occurs within that 
year, a Bingo Operating Licence will be required.  Where bingo is played in a 
Members Club under a Bingo Operating Licence no premises licence will be 
required.

23.3 The Commission will be informed if it comes to the attention of this Licensing 
Authority that alcohol-licensed premises or clubs or institutes are playing bingo 
during the course of a week which involves significant stakes and prizes, 
which makes it possible that the £2,000 in seven days is being exceeded.

24.0 Betting Premises

24.1 Betting machines This Licensing Authority will, in accordance with the 
Gambling Commission's Guidance, take into account the size of the premises, 
the number of counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, 
and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and 
young persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable 
people, when considering the number/nature/circumstances of betting 
machines an operator wants to offer.

24.2 This Licensing Authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to 
meet the Licensing Objectives, appropriate measures or licence conditions 

Page 52



23

may cover issues such as:

 Proof of age schemes

 CCTV

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas

 Location of entry

 Notices/signage

 Specific opening hours

 Self-exclusion schemes

 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures.

24.3 It is not permissible for an operator to offer gaming machines on a premises 
which is licensed for non-remote betting but not to offer sufficient facilities for 
non-remote betting. A non-remote betting operating licence authorises its 
holder to ‘provide facilities for betting’ (s.65(2)(c) of the Act). Likewise, a 
betting premises licence authorises premises to be used for ‘the provision of 
facilities for betting…’ (s.150(1)(e) of the Act). The ability to make up to four 
gaming machines, within categories B2 – D, available is an additional 
authorisation conferred upon the holder of a betting premises licence (s.172(8) 
of the Act); it is not a free standing right to make gaming machines available 
for use. It follows that unless a betting premises operator offers sufficient 
facilities for betting it should not be making gaming machines available on the 
premises in question. 

24.4 This Licensing Authority supports the Commission’s view that it is also 
important, in relation to the licensing objective of protecting vulnerable persons 
from being harmed or exploited by gambling, that customers should be offered 
a balanced mix of betting and gaming machines in licensed betting premises. 

24.5 Accordingly, an Operating Licence condition provides that gaming machines 
may be made available for use in Licensed Betting Premises only at times 
when there are also sufficient facilities for betting available. In this respect, 
such facilities must include information that enables customers to access 
details of events on which bets can be made, make such bets, learn of the 
outcome and collect any winnings.

24.6 Self Service Betting Terminals (SSBTs)

Page 53



24

24.7 The Gambling Act 2005 provides that a SSBT is not a gaming machine if it is 
designated or adapted for use to bet on future real events.  However, where a 
machine is made available to take bets on virtual races (that is, results and/or 
images generated by computer to resemble races or other events) that 
machine is a gaming machine and counts towards the maximum permitted 
number of gaming machines, and must meet the relevant category limitations 
for the premises.

24.8 The legislation provides licensing authorities with the power to restrict the 
number of SSBTs, their nature and the circumstances in which they are made 
available by attaching a licence condition to a betting premises licence.  When 
considering whether to impose a condition to restrict the number of SSBTs in 
particular premises, the licensing authority, amongst other things, will take into 
account the ability of employees to monitor the use of the machines by 
children and young persons or by vulnerable people.

25.0 Travelling Fairs

25.1 This Licensing Authority is responsible for deciding whether, where category D 
machines and/or equal chance prize gaming without a permit is to be made 
available for use at travelling fairs, the statutory requirement that the facilities 
for gambling amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair is 
met.

25.2 This Licensing Authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the 
statutory definition of a travelling fair.

25.3 It has been noted that the 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used 
as a fair, is per calendar year, and that it applies to the piece of land on which 
the fairs are held, regardless of whether it is the same or different travelling 
fairs occupying the land.  This Licensing Authority will work with its 
neighbouring Authorities to ensure that land which crosses our boundaries is 
monitored so that the statutory limits are not exceeded.

26.0 Provisional Statements

26.1 Developers may wish to apply to this Authority for Provisional Statements 
before entering into a contract to buy or lease property or land to judge 
whether a development is worth taking forward in light of the need to obtain a 
Premises Licence. There is no need for the applicant to hold an Operating 
Licence in order to apply for a provisional statement. 

26.2 Section 204 of the Gambling Act provides for a person to make an application 
to the Licensing Authority for a provisional statement in respect of premises 
that he or she:

 expects to be constructed;
 expects to be altered; or
 expects to acquire a right to occupy.

Page 54



25

26.3 The process for considering an application for a provisional statement is the 
same as that for a Premises Licence application. The applicant is obliged to 
give notice of the application in the same way as applying for a premises 
licence. Responsible Authorities and interested parties may make 
representations and there are rights of appeal. 

26.4 In contrast to the Premises Licence application, the applicant does not have to 
hold or have applied for an Operating Licence from the Gambling Commission 
(except in the case of a track) and they do not have to have a right to occupy 
the premises in respect of which their Provisional application is made. 

26.5 The holder of a Provisional Statement may then apply for a Premises Licence 
once the premises are constructed, altered or acquired. The Licensing 
Authority will be constrained in the matters it can consider when determining 
the Premises Licence application, and in terms of representations about 

Premises Licence applications that follow the grant of a Provisional Statement, 
no further representations from relevant Authorities or interested parties can be 
taken into account unless:

 they concern matters which could not have been addressed at the 
provisional statement stage, or

 they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances.  

26.6 In addition, the Authority may refuse the Premises Licence (or grant it on 
terms different to those attached to the Provisional Statement) only by 
reference to matters:

 which could not have been raised by objectors at the Provisional 
Statement stage; 

 which in the Authority’s opinion reflect a change in the operator’s 
circumstances; or

 where the Premises has not been constructed in accordance with the plan 
submitted with the application. This must be a substantial change to the 
plan and this Licensing Authority notes that it can discuss any concerns it 
has with the applicant before making a decision. 

27.0 Reviews

27.1 Requests for a review of a Premises Licence can be made by interested 
parties or Responsible Authorities, or may be initiated by the Licensing 
Authority. 

27.2 The ‘aim to permit’ framework provides wide scope for Licensing Authorities to 
review Premises Licences where there is an inherent conflict with the 
Commission’s codes of practice and this Guidance, the licensing objectives or 
the licensing authorities own policy statement.

Page 55



26

27.3 In relation to a class of premises, we may review the use made of premises 
and, in particular, the arrangements that Premises Licence holders have made 
to comply with licence conditions. In relation to these general reviews, it is 
likely that we will be acting as a result of concerns or complaints about 
particular types of premises or following an inspection of a premises which 
may result in them looking at, for example, default conditions that apply to that 
category of licence. 

27.4 In relation to particular premises, we may review any matter connected with 
the use made of the premises if: 

• we have reason to suspect that premises licence conditions are not 
being observed

 
• the premises is operating outside of the principles set out in the 

Licensing Authority’s Policy Statement 

• there is evidence to suggest that compliance with the Licensing 
Objectives is at risk 

• for any other reason which gives us cause to believe that a Review 
may be appropriate, such as a complaint from a third party. 

27.5 In particular, the Licensing Authority may also initiate a review of a Premises 
Licence on the grounds that a Premises Licence holder has not provided 
facilities for gambling at the premises. This is to prevent people from applying 
for licences in a speculative manner without intending to use them.

27.6 A formal review would normally be at the end of a process of ensuring 
compliance by the operator(s) which might include an initial investigation by a 
Licensing Authority Officer, informal mediation or dispute resolution. If the 
concerns are not resolved then, after a formal review, the Licensing Authority 
may impose additional conditions or revoke the Licence.

27.7 The determination of whether a review should be carried out will give 
consideration to the following in respect of whether the way in which the 
premises is operating is:

 In accordance with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission

 In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission

 Reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives

 In accordance with the Authority’s Statement of Principles

27.8 The Licensing Authority will also take into consideration whether the request is 
either frivolous, vexatious or would certainly not cause this Authority to wish to 

Page 56



27

alter/revoke/suspend the Licence.  The Licensing Authority will also consider 
whether the representations made in the application for a Review are 
substantially the same as previous representations or requests for Review.  In 
determining this matter, the Licensing Authority will take into account how 
much time has passed since any earlier application for a Review or since the 
Licence was granted.

27.9 The Licensing Authority can also initiate a Review of a Licence on the basis of 
any reason which it thinks is appropriate.

27.10 Once a valid application for a Review has been received by the Licensing 
Authority, representations can be made by Responsible Authorities and 
Interested Parties during a 28 day period. This period begins 7 days after the 
application was received by the Licensing Authority, who will publish notice of 
the application within 7 days of receipt. 

The Licensing Authority must carry out the review as soon as possible 
after the 28 day period for making representations has passed. 

27.11 The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the Licensing 
Authority should take any action in relation to the Licence. If action is 
justified, the options open to the Licensing Authority are to:- 

(a) add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the Licensing 
Authority;

(b) exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State or Scottish 
Ministers (e.g. opening hours) or remove or amend such an exclusion;

(c) suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
and

(d) revoke the premises licence.

27.12 In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the 
Licensing Authority must have regard to the principles set out in section 153 of 
the Act, as well as any relevant representations.

Once the review has been completed, the Licensing Authority must, as soon 
as possible, notify its decision to:

- the Licence holder
- the applicant for review (if any)
- the Commission
- any person who made representations
- the Chief Officer of Police or Chief Constable; and
- Her Majesty’s Commissioners for Revenue and Customs

Page 57



28

PERMITS/TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL USE NOTICE

28.0 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits. 

28.1 Unlicensed family entertainment centres (UFEC) are able to offer only 
category D machines in reliance on a Gaming Machine Permit. Any number of 
category D machines can be made available with such a permit, although 
there may be other considerations, such as Fire Regulations and health and 
safety, to take into account. Permits cannot be issued in respect of vessels or 
vehicles. 

28.2 UFECs are premises which are ‘wholly or mainly’ used for making gaming 
machines available. The permit cannot therefore be granted for an entire 
shopping centre, airport or bowling alley, for example. 

28.3 A permit lapses if the Licensing Authority informs the permit holder that the 
premises are not being used as a Family Entertainment Centre (FEC). 

28.4 If the operator wishes to make category C machines available in addition to 
category D machines, the Operator will need to apply for a ‘Gaming Machine 
General Operating Licence (Family Entertainment Centre)’ from the 
Commission and a premises licence from the licensing authority.

28.5 The Gambling Commission’s Guidance states: “…..An application for a 
permit may be granted only if the Licensing Authority is satisfied that the 
premises will be used as an unlicensed FEC, and if the Chief Officer of Police 
has been consulted on the application. In accordance with the Guidance, this 
Licensing Authority will expect applicants to demonstrate:

 A full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is 
permissible in unlicensed FECs

 That an applicant has no relevant convictions, those that are set out in 
Schedule 7 of the Act

 That staff are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and 
prizes 

28.6 We note that a Licensing Authority can grant or refuse a licence but cannot 
attach conditions to this type of permit.

28.7 This Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to submit a plan of the 
premises and show that there are policies and procedures in place to protect 
children from harm.  Harm in this context is not limited to harm from gambling 
but includes wider child protection considerations. 

28.8 The efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be considered on 
their merits, however, they may include appropriate measures / training for 
staff as regards suspected truant school children on the premises, measures / 

Page 58



29

training covering how staff would deal with unsupervised very young children 
being on the premises, or children causing perceived problems on / around 
the premises. 

29.0 Premises Licensed to Sell Alcohol

Automatic Entitlement: 2 Machines

29.1 There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for 
consumption on the premises, to automatically have 2 gaming machines, of 
categories C and/or D.  The premises merely need to notify the Licensing 
Authority.  The Licensing Authority can remove the automatic authorisation in 
respect of any particular premises if:

 The person ceases to be the holder of the on-premises alcohol licence for the 
premises, the automatic entitlement to the two gaming machines also ceases.  
Whoever applies for the new premises alcohol licence would also need to 
apply under section 282(2), notifying the Licensing Authority of their intention 
to make the gaming machines available for use and paying the prescribed fee

 Provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the 
Licensing Objectives

 Gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of Section 
282 for example the gaming machines have been made available that do not 
comply with requirements on the location and operation of gaming machines 

 The premises are mainly used for gaming

 An offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises

Permit: 3 or more machines

29.2 If a Premises Licence Holder wishes to have more than 2 machines, then they  
need to apply for a permit and the Licensing Authority must consider that 
application based upon the Licensing Objectives, any guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission issued under Section 25 of the Gambling Act 2005,  
and “such matters as they think relevant.”

29.3 This Licensing Authority considers that “such matters” will be decided on a 
case by case basis, but generally there will be regard to the need to protect 
children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or being exploited by 
gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the Authority that there will be 
sufficient measures to ensure that persons under the age of 18 do not have 
access to the adult only gaming machines.  

29.4 Measures which will satisfy the Authority that there will be no access may 
include the adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in the sight of staff who 
will monitor that the machines are not being used by those under 18. Notices 
and signage on the machines or in the premises may also help and are 

Page 59



30

encouraged by this Authority.  As regards the protection of vulnerable 
persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of information leaflets / 
helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare.

29.5 It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a Premises 
Licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would 
normally need to be applied for, and dealt with as an Adult Gaming Centre 
Premises Licence.

29.6 It should be noted that we as the Licensing Authority can decide to grant the 
application with a smaller number of machines and/or a different category of 
machines than that applied for.  Conditions other than these cannot be 
attached to a permit.

29.7 It should also be noted that the holder of a permit must comply with any Code 
of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and 
operation of the machine(s).

29.8 The Licensing Authority is able to cancel a permit. It may only do so in 
specified circumstances which include if the premises are used wholly or 
mainly by children or young persons or if an offence under the Act has been 
committed. Before it cancels a permit the Licensing Authority must notify the 
holder, giving 21 days notice of intention to cancel, consider any 
representations made by the holder, hold a hearing if requested, and comply 
with any other prescribed requirements relating to the procedure to be 
followed. Where the Licensing Authority cancels the permit, the cancellation 
does not take effect until the period for appealing against that decision has 
elapsed or, where an appeal is made, until the appeal is determined.

30.0 Prize Gaming Permits 

30.1 A Prize Gaming Permit is a permit issued by the Licensing Authority to 
authorise the provision of facilities for gaming with prizes on specified 
premises.

30.2 An applicant for a Prize Gaming Permit should set out the types of gaming that 
he or she is intending to offer, a plan of the premises and the applicant should 
be able to demonstrate: 

 That they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in 
Regulations

 
 That the gaming offered is within the law

 Clear policies that outline the steps to be taken to protect children from harm.

30.3 In making its decision on an application for this type of permit the Licensing 
Authority does not need, but may, have regard to the Licensing Objectives but 
must have regard to any Gambling Commission Guidance.  The Licensing 

Page 60



31

Authority will consult the Safeguarding Children Board where it considers it 
appropriate to do so.

30.4 It should be noted that there are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 by which 
the permit holder must comply, but that the Licensing Authority cannot attach 
conditions.  The conditions in the Act are:

 The limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied 
with

 All chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on 
which the gaming is taking place and on one day 

 The game must be played and completed on the day the chances are 
allocated 

 The result of the game must be made public in the premises on the day that it 
is played 

 The prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in 
regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize) 

 Participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other 
gambling 

31.0 Application for Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits

31.1 The Licensing Authority may only refuse an application on the grounds that:

 The applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a Members’ or Commercial 
Club or Miners’ Welfare Institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the 
type of permit for which it has applied

 The applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young 
persons

 An offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the 
applicant while providing gaming facilities

 A permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years

 An objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police

31.2 If the Authority is satisfied that either or the first two points is the case, it must 
refuse the application.  Licensing Authorities shall have regard to relevant 
guidance issued by the Commission and subject to that guidance, the 
Licensing Objectives.

Page 61



32

31.3 In cases where an objection has been lodged by the Commission or  
Merseyside Police, the Licensing Authority is obliged to determine whether the 
objection is valid.

31.4 There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available under the Act for premises 
which hold a Club Premises Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 
(Schedule 12 paragraph 10).

31.5 As the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for Local Authorities states: "Under 
the fast-track procedure there is no opportunity for objections to be made by 
the Commission or the Police and the grounds upon which an Authority can 
refuse a permit are reduced” and "The grounds on which an application under 
the process may be refused are:

 That the Club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming 
prescribed by Regulations under Section 266 of the Gambling Act 2005.

 That in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for 
other gaming.

 That a Club Gaming Permit or Club Machine Permit issued to the applicant in 
the last ten years has been cancelled."

31.6 Club Gaming Permit

31.7 The Licensing Authority will seek to satisfy itself that the Club meets the 
requirements of the Act to obtain a Club Gaming Permit. Therefore applicants 
will be asked to supply sufficient information and documents to enable the 
Licensing Authority to determine whether the Club is a genuine Members 
Club. 

31.8 In determining whether a club is a genuine Members’ Club, the Licensing 
Authority will take account of a number of matters, such as:

 Is the primary purpose of the club’s activities something other than the
provision of gaming to its members? 

 Are the profits retained in the Club for the benefit of the members?

 Are there 25 or more members? 

 Are there genuine domestic addresses on the register of members? Are
domestic addresses listed for every member? Are members local to the club?  

 Do members participate in the activities of the club via the internet? 

 What information is provided on the Club’s website?

 Do guest arrangements link a member to every guest? Is there evidence of a 
signing-in register for guests? 

Page 62



33

 Is the 48 hour rule between applying for membership and participating in any 
gaming properly applied? 

 Are there annual accounts for more than one year? 

 How is the Club advertised and listed in directories, including on the internet?  

 Are children permitted into the Club? 

 Does the Club have a Constitution and can it provide evidence that the
Constitution was approved by the members of the Club? 

 Is there a list of committee members and evidence of their election by the 
members of the Club? Can the Club provide minutes of committee and other 
meetings? 

31.9 The Constitution of the Club could also indicate whether it is a legitimate 
Members’ Club.  Amongst the things the Authority will consider when 
examining the constitution are the following:

 Who makes commercial decisions on behalf of the Club and what are the 
governance arrangements? Clubs are normally run by a Committee made up 
of members of the Club, rather than individuals or managers, who make 
decisions on behalf of the members. There will normally be a system 
(consultation, voting, paper ballots, annual general meetings, special 
meetings, etc) which allows members to be involved in major decisions 
concerning the management and running of the Club. Such arrangements 
would normally be spelt out in the Constitution

 Are the aims of the Club set out in the Constitution? A lack of aims or aims 
which involve gaming could indicate that it is not a genuine Members' Club

 Are there shareholders or members? Shareholders would indicate a business 
enterprise linked to a Commercial Club

 Is the Members’ Club permanently established? Clubs can’t be temporary and 
must be permanent in nature

 Can people join with annual or quarterly membership? This would indicate that 
the Club is permanent in nature

 Are there long term membership benefits? This would also indicate that the 
Club is permanent in nature and that it is a genuine Members' Club. The 
benefits of membership would normally be set out in the rules of membership.

31.10 Other than Bridge and Whist Clubs, which are separately catered for in 
Regulations, a Club cannot be established wholly or mainly for purposes of 
gaming. In applying for a Club Gaming Permit, a Club must therefore provide 

Page 63



34

substantial evidence of activities other than gaming. Questions that the 
Licensing Authority will consider include:

 How many nights is gaming made available? 

 Is the gaming advertised? 

 What are the stakes and prizes offered? 

 Is there evidence of leagues with weekly/monthly/annual winners? 

 Is there evidence of non-playing members? 

 Are there teaching sessions to promote gaming, such as poker? 

 Is there tie-in with other Clubs offering gaming, such as poker, through 
tournaments or leagues? 

 Is there sponsorship by gaming organisations, for example on-line poker 
providers? 

 Are participation fees within limits? 

The Authority will undertake a visit to the premises before granting of the 
permit to assist the Licensing Officer to understand how the club will operate. 

31.11 Club Machine Permit

31.12 The Licensing Authority will seek to satisfy itself that the gaming on offer 
meets the conditions set out in the Act and relevant regulations. To do this, the 
Licensing Authority will ask questions of the applicant or ensure that the 
exempt gaming complies with these conditions. The conditions are:

 There must be no rake from the pot (that is, the organiser cannot take any 
money from the prize fund, or deduct money from the stakes or winnings). 
Licensing Authorities should examine the records for gaming or, if possible, 
observe or get statements about the pot.

 There must be no side bets. This is probably only going to be possible to verify 
through observations.

 Participation fees must be within the limits prescribed in the Regulations. Is 
there evidence of excess participation fees in Club records, adverts for gaming 
in or outside of the club or from complaints? 

 Prizes must be within the limits prescribed in the Regulations. Is there 
evidence that they are excessive from records at the Club, in adverts for 
gaming, etc? 

Page 64



35

 Where the games are poker tournaments or leagues, the Licensing Authority 
will consult part 29 of the Guidance which sets out how the law applies to 
Poker. This should help the Licensing Authority to determine whether the 
gaming is within the law from evidence such as records in the club and adverts 
for gaming.

32.0 Temporary Use Notices

32.1 Temporary Use Notices allow the use of premises for gambling where there is 
no premises licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use the 
premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. Premises that might 
be suitable for a Temporary Use Notice, according to the Gambling 
Commission, would include hotels, conference centres and sporting venues.

32.2 The Licensing Authority can only grant a Temporary Use Notice to a person or 
company holding a relevant Operating Licence, i.e. a non-remote casino 
operating licence. 

32.3 The Gambling Act 2005 (Temporary Use Notices) Regulations 2007 sets out 
the restrictions on the type of gambling to be offered under a Temporary Use 
Notice. These restrictions are: 

 it can only be used to offer gambling of a form authorised by the operator’s 
Operating Licence, and consideration should therefore be given as to whether 
the form of gambling being offered on the premises will be remote, non-
remote, or both 

 gambling under a Temporary Use Notice may only be made available on a 
maximum of 21 days in any 12 month period for any or all of a named set of 
premises 

 it can only be used to permit the provision of facilities for equal chance 
gaming, and where the gaming in each tournament is intended to produce a 
single overall winner 

 gaming machines may not be made available under a Temporary Use Notice

32.4 A Temporary Use Notice must be lodged with the Licensing Authority not less 
than three months and one day before the day on which the gambling event 
will begin. A fee is payable to the Licensing Authority to whom the notification 
is sent. The application must be copied to: 

 the Commission 
 the Police 
 HM Commissioners for Revenue and Customs 
 if applicable, any other Licensing Authority in whose area the premises are 

also situated

Page 65



36

32.5 The person who is giving the Temporary Use Notice must ensure that the 
notice and copies are with the recipients within seven days of the date of the 
notice.

32.6 The Licensing Authority and the other bodies to which the notice is copied 
should consider whether they wish to give a notice of objection. In considering 
whether to do so, they must have regard to the Licensing Objectives and if 
they consider that the gambling should not take place, or only with 
modifications, they must give a notice of objection to the person who gave the 
Temporary Use Notice. Such a notice must be copied to the Licensing 
Authority. The Notice of Objection and the copy to the Licensing Authority 
must be given within 14 days, beginning with the date on which the Temporary 
Use Notice is given. An objection may be withdrawn by giving written notice to 
those to whom the notice of objection was sent and copied.

32.7 If objections are received, the Licensing Authority must hold a hearing to listen 
to representations from the person who gave the Temporary Use Notice, all 
the objectors and any person who was entitled to receive a copy of the notice. 
If all the participants agree that a hearing is unnecessary, it may be dispensed 
with.

32.8 This Licensing Authority expects to object to notices where it appears that 
their effect would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be 
described as one set of premises, as recommended in the Gambling 
Commission’s “Guidance to Licensing Authorities”.

33.0 Occasional Use Notices

33.1 The Licensing Authority has very little discretion as regards these notices 
aside from ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not 
exceeded.

Page 66



37Page 67



38

Appendix A - Scheme of Delegation

MATTER TO BE DEALT 
WITH

FULL COUNCIL LICENSING ACT 
2003 COMMITTEE

SUB-COMMITTEE OF 
LICENSING ACT 2003 
COMMITTEE

OFFICERS

Three year Licensing policy X

Policy not to permit casinos X

Fee Setting – when 
appropriate

X

Application for premises 
licences

Where Representations have 
been received and not 
withdrawn

Where no representations 
received/representations have 
been withdrawn

Application for a  Variation to a 
licence

Where Representations have 
been received and not 
withdrawn

Where no Representations 
received/representations have 
been withdrawn

Application for a transfer of a 
licence

Where representations have 
been received from the 
Commission

Where no representations 
received from the Commission

Application for a provisional 
statement

Where representations have 
been received and not 
withdrawn

Where no representations 
received/representations have 
been withdrawn

Review of a premises licence X

Application for club gaming/ 
club machine permits

Where representations have 
been received and not 
withdrawn

Where no objections received/  
Representations have been 
withdrawn

Cancellation of club  Gaming/ 
club machine Permits 

X

Applications for other permits X

Cancellation of licensed 
premises gaming  Machine 
permits

X

Consideration of temporary 
use notice

X

Decision to give a counter 
notice to a temporary use 
notice

X

Determination as to whether a 
person is an Interested Party

X

Determination as to whether 
representations are relevant

X

Determination as whether a 
Representation if frivolous, 
vexatious or repetitive

X

Page 68



39Page 69



40

Appendix B – List of Consultees

This draft document is being been circulated to a number of consultees including 
those listed below.  

 Elected Councillors, Wirral Council

 Environmental Health and Trading Standards Manager, Wirral Council

 Planning Authority, Wirral Council

 Local Safe Guarding Children Board, Wirral Council

 Wirral Federation of Tenants and Residents Association

 The Gambling Commission 

 Merseyside Police

 Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service

 H. M. Revenue & Customs

 Public Health

 Citizen’s Advice Bureau

 The Bingo Association

 Association of British Bookmakers

 British Casino Association

 Casino Operators Association of the UK

 British Holiday & Home Parks Association

 British Beer & Pub Association

 Gaming Machine Suppliers

 All persons who hold a Betting Office Premises Licence

 All persons who hold a Bingo Premises Licence

 Amusement Arcades that hold Adult Gaming Centre and Family Entertainment 

Centre Premises Licences

 Representatives holders of various licences 

Page 70



41Page 71



42

Appendix C – Responsible Authorities

Environmental Health (Pollution 
Control)

Environmental Health
Town Hall
Brighton Street
Wallasey
CH44 8ED

Body Responsible for the Protection 
of Children from Harm

Local Safe Guarding Children Board
Hamilton Building
Conway Street
Birkenhead
CH41 4FD

Chief Officer of Merseyside Police

Police Licensing Section
Walton Lane Police Station
Walton Lane
Liverpool
L4 5XF

Licensing Authority

Wirral Borough Council
Town Hall
Brighton Street
Wallasey
CH44 8ED

Planning Authority

Development Control
Town Hall
Brighton Street
Wallasey
CH44 8ED

Fire and Rescue Authority

Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service
Wirral District Fire Safety
The Fire Station
Mill Lane
Wallasey
CH44 5UE

The Gambling Commission

Victoria Square House
Victoria Square
Birmingham
B2 4BP

H.M. Revenue & Customs

Portcullis House
21 India Street
Glasgow
G2 4PZ

Page 72


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	Minutes
	Minutes 12 June
	Minutes


	3 MINUTES OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE
	Minutes
	17 July minutes
	Minutes

	23 August minutes
	Minutes

	6 September minutes
	Minutes


	4 DRAFT STATEMENT OF POLICY UNDER THE GAMBLING ACT 2005
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


